THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In the Court of Appeals

APPEL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY  
Danial Hall, Circuit Court Judge

\_\_\_\_\_  
Case No 2018-001125  
\_\_\_\_\_

**RECEIVED**  
SEP 04 2018  
SC Court of Appeals

Theodore Wagner.....Appellant

v.

Designa Print and Mike Davis including anyone who is Complicit or Enabled protecting Mike  
Davis....Respondent

\_\_\_\_\_  
**BRIEF OF APPELLANT**  
\_\_\_\_\_

Date: Aug 31 2018

Theodore Wagner  
Theodore Wagner, Pro Se  
General Delivery - Homeless  
557 East Bay Street  
Charleston, SC 29403  
Pro Se for the Appellant

Kenneth G. Goody, Jr., Attorney  
4 Carriage Lane, Suite 204  
Charleston, South Carolina 29407  
Attorney for Respondent

**( A ) TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<b>Table of Contents:</b>	<b>Page Number:</b>	(2)
<b>Cases used: (alphabetically arranged)</b>	<b>Page Number:</b>	(2)
<b>Anton v. South Carolina Coastal Counsel, 469 S.E. 2d. 604 at 605 (S.C. 1996) -</b>		
<b>Constitution overrides the Statute.</b>	<b>Page</b>	(9)
<b>CARTER VS. CARTER COAL CO., 298 US 238 - Shall be the Supreme Law of the Land</b>		
	<b>Page</b>	(10)
<b>DOC vs. Heller, 554 US 570 - Operative Clause - Right of the People.</b>		
	<b>Page</b>	(11)
<b>Marbury vs. Madison, 1 CRANCH 137 - Law Repugnant to the Constitution is Void.</b>		
	<b>Page</b>	(13)
<b>Olmstead vs. United States, 277 US 438 - Through the Department of Justice, to avail</b>		
<b>itself of the fruits of these acts.</b>	<b>Page</b>	(14, 29 )
<b>Pollock vs. Farmers' Loan &amp; Trust Co. 157 US 429 - To declare a law unconstitutional but</b>		
<b>the duty to do so.</b>	<b>Page</b>	(15)
<b>Schick vs. United States, 195 US 65 - Amendments must control.</b>		
<b>USA vs. Butler, 297 US 1 (1936)</b>	<b>Page</b>	(16)
<b>U.S. vs. Colkley, 899 F.2d. 299 (4<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1990) - Omissions in Warrant Affidavit</b>		(19)
<b>United Mine Workers of America, vs. Illinois State Bar Asso. et al, 389 US 217 (1967)</b>		
	<b>Page</b>	(19)
<b>Statutes:</b>	<b>Page Number:</b>	
<b>RULE 41, DISMISSAL OF ACTIONS; NON-SUIT (b) Involuntary Dismissal: (Pg. 35)</b>		
<b>Other authorities cited:</b>	<b>Page Number:</b>	

**From U.S. Constitution**

**Article 6, 2 paragraph** (Pg. 18)

**First Amendment, Fifth Sentence:** Used only reference.

**Seventh Amendment:** The Right of Trial By Jury Shall Be Preserved. That is why I kept repeating TRIAL BY JURY DEMANDED. (Pg. 31)

**Ninth Amendment:** I Theodore Wagner Retain My Right to The Truth, The whole Truth, and Nothing but the Truth be placed on the record about me. (Pg. 3, 18, 20, 22)

**From S.C. Constitution**

**ARTICLE 1, SECTION 2, Fifth Sentence:** “The General Assembly shall make no law respecting the right of the people to peaceable petition the Government or any department thereof for a redress of grievances”. (19)

**ARTICLE I., DECLARATION OF RIGHTS, SECTION 3.** (19)

**ARTICLE III. LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT, SECTION 26.** Oath of office. (19)

**ARTICLE VI. OFFICER, SECTION 5. Form of oath.** (19)

**(B) Statement of Issues on Appeal:** **Page Number:** (4)

**(C) Statement of the Case:** **Page Number:** (5)

**(D) Standard of Review: Cases must be presented to show that Constitutional Challenge Must Be Heard!** **Page Number:** (10)

**(E) Argument:** **Page Number:** Start on (17)

**Exhibits: Are Numbed DVD Was for Court Audio / Video Just listen.**

I included these because as a poor person I gave a lot of the Evidence to Kenneth Good and the Court when I Filed it on DVD. You can look for it and Find it. I also want to use it in my Book about

the Corruption of the Judaical System and as Mike Davis said on the day we met, "You would have to have 5 million Dollars to stand a chance of beating me. I can buy my way out of it". On January 21, 2018 I thought we would be friends for ever so I did not pay attention.

**DVD Exhibit. (P. 33, Line 15)** Then he wants me to explain it. I had a right to have a **Trial by Jury** hear it. You can't explain and understand the traumatizing effects with out listing the the evidence I was denied. **I Demanded as of Right a Trial By Jury.** Many are just Mike and myself. Some show the Trauma Triggered when Mike Davis does another stupid.

**(Exhibit 1, 8 Pages) Constitutional Challenge with Proof of Restricted Delivery. (Pg. 20, 21)**

**(Exhibit 2, 16 pages) I believe there were more. (R. pp. 33-38) (Pg. 7, 19, 25)**

**(Exhibit 3, 3 pages) Called a Status Conference and used to send me back to Prison. (Pg. 7)**

**(Exhibit 4, 10 pages) (R. p. 41, Line 19-21) Mike Davis continues Terror and the Government covers it up. (Pg. 10)**

**(Exhibit 5, 2 pages) The signed by Judge Hall, Dismissal per SCRCF 41 B (Pg. 35)**

**(Exhibit 6, 2 pages) For medical Records. (Pg. 38)**

**(F) Conclusion: Page Number: (Pg. 39)**

**(B) Statement on Issues on Appeal**

**May be stated in question form:**

**1. Does a Constitutional Challenge Have To Be Addressed when properly Filed and served on the South Carolina Attorney General Redistricted Delivery? (Page 21)**

**2. Once a Judge on the Bench during Court sees Evidence of a Felony Crime that has been Committed and he is holding the Evidence can he Complicity Enable and aid in the Facilitation in the Ongoing Cover up of this Felony Crime? (Pg. 25)**

**3. Does a Judge who aided in and was part of a Criminal Conspiracy of the sentencing of a**

person have the right to sit in judgment of a case of those same issues in a Civil Case? (Pg. 33)

4. Was I wrongly kicked out of Court on May 8, 2018 by Judge Hall using SCRCP 41 B?

(Pg. 35)

5. Can a person who has Evidence from From a Licensed Mental Health Doctor who states he Suffers from Metal Disorders be denied the Assistance of a Court Appointed Attorney as defined in the United States Constitution and the South Carolina Constitution? (Pg. 36)

6. Does It violate the Constitution (s) to for the Government or it's Departments to make laws, case laws, rules, procedures, etc. that Oppress witnesses from appearances that will prove a part of your Grievance? (Pg. 37)

7. Can the Court rule to change your Grievance Filed to protect Wrongdoers? (Pg. 37)

8. Can a lawyer demand you supply a second set of copies of evidence he already received?

(Pg. 38)

### **(C) Statement of the Case**

**This whole case against Mike Davis Terrorizing me has to do with the Evidence Shown to Mike Davis on January 21, 2014 for and hour and a half that proves he knew I am Innocent and uses the Government Conspiracy to Terrorize me. All of the 6 inch stake of papers he looked at are relevant. The Defendant's Lawyer had lots of them and they were clearly explained to him and how they are relevant. (R. P. 29 Lines 7-9) The Evidence has to be included in this Appeal to explain the Appeal. This includes the Audio Recording of Mike saying he hopes I sue the &\*^% out to the them 2 hours after meeting him. (The Federal Government!) (DVD Exhibit)**

On January 22, 2014 I was going to prison for exercising my First Amendment Right for a Grievances Guaranteed in the 5<sup>th</sup> Sentence of the First Amendment. I did not have to go to prison but I would not give up my First Amendment Right For a Redress of my Grievance that I was never Guilty and the Government Conspired to Cover Up the Truth to protect other people. I had no Family or

Friends I could trust to handle my Disability check while I was in prison. All my roommate Aaron talked about was how much he loved his girlfriend Holly and was clear soon after I moved in he was going to be moving out with her. Even the day before I left for prison he was talking about moving out with her. I feared I would come back and find he had used my disability to rent an apartment West Ashley as they kept saying. At that time he also was not very trust worthy. He had a Millionaire friend Mike Davis he had just met and a Millionaire will not steal from a person getting 700.00 Dollars a month in Disability so I ask Aaron Satcher to ask Mike Davis over the next night so I could talk to him. He Did. I am on the Sexual Registry for something my wife Andrea Crisel, also know in the Government Cover up as Victim A, did when she was 20 years, 1 month, 16 days old and I had nothing to do with it. (I have included a DVD Disk with Mike Davis and I talking on the day we met. I am giving him my pin number, card, etc. and Mike saying he hopes I sue the \$\*%# out of the Government after listing to and looking at the Evidence closely an hour and half Mike tells me he believes I am innocent and the Government set me up. I will be showing you less than 1 % of that Evidence Mike Davis looked at that night and a video on record after he broke in my window and stood over my bed while I slept. Mike Davis got a 12 year State Stalking Sentence after years of this and still beat more. That is part of my Appeal of Constitutional Challenge is Government Power to Cover up.

But to understand the fight to prove I am Innocent and meeting Mike Davis on January 21, 2014 you have to know part of what I told Mike that night.

On the morning of June 25, 1999 my 20 year old wife left to go to Folly Beach with her friends and said she would not be home that night. Andrea was a Freak and said they were going to have an Orgy that night at some other place, she never did it at our house. As she was 20 years younger than I was she never aloud me to hang out with her friends. I invited 22 year old Candice Christensen to come over, lay out, have dinner, and spend the night. NO SEX. About 6:30 pm. Andrea comes in with 3 friends, 2 boxes of rubbers, and ask to use the camera. Two of her friends I met that day, and

proceeded to have her party in our house. This ran my guest 22 year old Candice Christensen off when Andrea went down on Barbie. Years later on February 28, 2002, 2 days after beating up our roommate for tagging my wife I was arrested for her party and refused all request to see the Affidavits and Warrants. I am on the Sexual Registry for 2 of the 4 tapes 20 year old Andrea made that night. The Government Conspired to cover up her age and it has never been put on the Record that Andrea was an Adult or that it was her party and only friends, who made these 4 tapes. They still call Andrea a Victim when you can't be a victim of my charge I am on the Registry for, **Title 18, USC Section 2251 (a)**. Andrea did this by herself and the Government Cover Up and puts me on the Registry. ( Judge Hall took these pages to the back and knows of this Ongoing Conspiracy to cover up Andrea's age just as Mike Davis and Kenneth Goode has seen and knows of it.) **(R. PP. 33-38)**

Furthermore, my lawyers who conspired with the prosecution to set me up and refused to defend me got Detective William Crews of the Charleston County Sheriffs Department off from years of assaulting children as young as 10 years old and he has no record and is not on the Registry. ( Judge Hall took these to the back and all named have seen these also. Notice Andy Savage's stamp on the bottom of the page and the news paper article given to Judge Hall and all.) **(Exhibit 2, 16 pages)**

I also told Mike Davis how angry it made me that my Lawyers said I could not make Candice Christensen come in and testify. Andrea met her at La Petit Day Care where Andrea worked. She was not an Escort. Candice was a specialized call Girl for police, lawyers, at least 1 judge I wrote about in my Diaries, and very rich Charleston business men. We stopped being friends because I caught her teaching Andrea how to be a Call Girl. But I demanded to my Lawyers they bring her in to testify about that one day, June 25, 1999 and Mike Davis knew it. There are a 1000 stories that were in those Diaries y'all stole of mine. I'll stop.

In 2014 Michael Rhett Dehart of the United States Attorneys Office **(Exhibit 3, 3 pages)** The

called it a Status Conference almost a year after I was out of prison and had been a perfect probationer. I say to Judge P. Michael Duffy of the Federal Department of Justice, "*They still haven't admitted Andrea was born May 9, 1979. Victim A. I happened on June 25<sup>th</sup> 1999. She was 20 year, 1 month, 16 days old. She is the only person that had sex with anybody. I never had sex with anybody.*" Judge Duffy then sent me back to prison for 45 days using a Status Conference 1 year after my release to punish me because I refused to stop filing law suits to put the Truth that I am Innocent on the Record. I force Judge Duffy to take a copy of all of Exhibit 2 and more. They both Conspired to lie to Facilitate this cover up at that Court Hearing to send me to prison again as my only crime was exercising my First Amendment Right For a Redress of my Grievance that **I am Innocent and am Denied Justice. That is how I met Mike Davis and showed him all the evidence to show the Government crimes.** After talking to my Probation Officer and other things the prison refused to talk to me saying the Legal Department advised them not to get involved in my case. Something is wrong with it. I was never evaluated.

I was hoping to be friends with Mike Davis. Aaron Satcher and Mike Davis were the ones who had an ending of friendship when Mike Davis contacted Aaron's Family, Pastor, Girlfriend Holly, and Aaron said I was not allowed to have Mike around our apartment ever again. March 30, 2014.

Until May 4, 2014 I thought this is none of my business except Mike should leave Aaron alone as it had been 2 months sense Aaron told him to go away and it was getting worse. On May 4, 2014 Mike Davis broke into our apartment through the window, **broke into my room as I slept**, and when I caught him a few minutes later, **Mike told me he had been standing over my bed.** Aaron told me not to call the police. He just wanted Mike to go away. At this point I did also.

On Friday, June 6, 2014 I answer the door while Aaron is at work and Mike Davis who lives in Summerville, South Carolina and drives to Downtown Charleston to Stalk Aaron serves Aaron with a Retraining Order for harassment. It names me in it, that I am Gay and more. Now he has involved me

and I start the “**Chronology of Michael (Mike) Steven Davis Staking of Aaron Satcher**” which has the hundreds of times Mike Davis Terrorized and Threatened Aaron and myself and was used to get Mike Davis's City of Charleston Conviction by Prosecutor Lucka.

On July 1, 2014 and September 11, 2014 witnesses saw Mike Davis slice my bike tires. City of Charleston Investigator Brown said he is going to keep getting off with high priced lawyers. I will only get a solid conviction with a picture of him doing it.

It had got so bad everyday that I put in Surveillance Cameras inside and out and laid in Panic all the time.

It got so bad for me I had to start going to a Mental Counselor for counseling and medications. I finally got my First doctor visit on May 15, 2015. Aaron had a girlfriend to talk to, I did not.

Around June 7, 2015 Prosecutor Lucka of the City of Charleston put in a request to have Mike Davis's Consent Order his lawyer bought him Revoked that was for Terrorizing Aaron and me. Roommate is named in the paperwork. He only got 30 days house arrest at which time he continued to use the Internet to Terrorize me and it got worse.

It had got so bad over the years that on June 19, 2015 both Aaron and I filed complaints. Theodore Wagner FBI Complaint against Mike Davis is I1506191313123701

Mike Davis gets off of 30 day house arrest at 12:00 Midnight on July 18, 2015.

On July 19, 2015 about 3:40 am in the morning Aaron is coming home from work and sees Mike Davis in the back roads of our neighborhood. He calls the police. I look at the surveillance cameras. It shows Mike Davis putting up a poster and then after getting caught by Aaron coming back to get it. I give them to Inspector Brown the next morning. We joked that that was a lot of money not wasted. It is on the DVDs supplied I had for Court and is included here.

I am so bad off by now and remembering Mike Davis laughing at me saying you would have over 5 million dollars to stand a chance suing him the night he said he believed I was Innocent adds to

my Trauma. **I live in Trauma and Panic.** It takes days to do anything when you live in Trauma and Panic but on July 29, 2015 I Filled this suit. He just buys an expensive lawyer and laughs it off.

Mike Davis pleads guilty and gets 12 years suspended to baby probation. I Still Suffer Every Day! Having to remember all of this to write this causes Trauma. No one should have to pay for something for the rest of their life for something someone else does.

Even after Mike Davis had a Permanent Restraining Order, 21 days later he did it again and the Government protected him even with all the evidence in front of them. That was why I subpoenaed his Probation Officer **Agent Matthew Johnson**. Nothing I was going to ask the probation officer was protected. (Exhibit 4, 10 pages) (R. p. 41, Line 19-21) It does show Mike Davis Committed a Crime after the 21 days after a Permanent Restraining Order and his Lawyer and Probation Officer covered up. Agent Johnson had the Authority and power to follow up on that. If Mike had been poor he would have. It would not have violated (R. p. 41, Line 19-21) to have him testify. I Challenge that Law also!

This is less than 1 % of what was on the **Chronology** I had for Court. As I am not a Lawyer and the only way I know how to present the case to a Jury was in Chronological order in 35 pages of the years to terror against me by Mike Davis.

#### **(D) Standard of Review**

**The Standard of Review for the Constitutional Challenge are clearly stated in the cases used. Once the Constitutional Challenge is made a Judge has a Duty to see it is addressed. As the Constitution is to protect The People from the Government I worded my Challenges for The People to Address. Presenting these cases makes it harder to turn a blind eye to them. DUTY!**

**Anton v. South Carolina Coastal Counsel, 469 S.E. 2d. 604 at 605 (S.C. 1996)**

**“Where there is a conflict between the statute and the State Constitution, the Constitution**

overrides the Statute.” State v. Whitener, 225 S.C. 244, 81 S.E. 2d. 784 (1954)

**CARTER VS. CARTER COAL CO., 298 US 238 (1936)**

[14][15] And the Constitution itself is in every real sense a law—the lawmakers being the people themselves, is whom under our system all political power and sovereignty primarily resides, and through whom such power and sovereignty primarily speaks. It is by that law, and not otherwise, that the legislative, executive, and judicial agencies which it created exercise such political authority as they have been permitted to possess, the Constitution speaks for itself in terms so plain that to misunderstand their import is not rationally possible, "**We the People of the United States**," it says, "**do ordain and establish this Constitution...**" Ordain and establish! These are definite words of enactment, and without more would stamp what follows with the dignity and character of law. The framers of the Constitution, however, were not content to let the matter rest here, but provided explicitly—"**This Constitution, and the Laws of the United States which shall be made in Pursuance thereof;... shall be the supreme Law of the Land;...**" The supremacy of the Constitution as law is thus declared without qualification. That supremacy is absolute; the supremacy of a statute enacted by Congress is not absolute but conditioned upon its being made in pursuance of the Constitution. And a judicial tribunal, clothed by that instrument with complete judicial power, and, therefore, by the very nature of the power, required to ascertain and apply the law to the facts in every case or proceeding properly brought for adjudication, **must apply the supreme law and reject the inferior statute**

[298 US 297]

**whenever the two conflict.** In the discharge of that duty, the opinion of the lawmakers that a statute passed by them is valid must be given great weight, *Adkins v. Children's Hospital*, 261 U.S. 525, 544, 67 L. ed. 785, 790, 43 S.Ct. 394, 24 A.L.R. 1238; **but their opinion, or the court's opinion, that the**

statute will prove greatly or generally beneficial is wholly irrelevant to the inquiry, A. I. a Schechter Poultry Corp, v. United States, 295 U.S. 495, 549, 550, 79 L. ed. 1570, 1590, 1591, 55 S. Ct. 837, 97 A.L.R. 947.

### D.O.C. vs. HELLER, 554 US 570 (2008)

#### 1. Operative Clause.

a. **"Right of the People"** The first salient feature of the operative clause is that it codifies a "right of the people." The unamended Constitution and the Bill of Rights use the phrase "right of the people" two other times, in the **First Amendment's Assembly-and Petition Clause** and in the Fourth Amendment's Search-and- Seizure Clause. **The Ninth Amendment used very similar terminology ("the enumeration in the Constitution, of certain rights, shall not be construed to deny or disparage others retained by the people")**. *All three of these instances unambiguously refer to individual rights, not "collective" rights, or rights that may be exercised only through participation in some corporate body.*

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