THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Circuit Court
The Honorable Daniel D. Hall, Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2015-CP-10-4166
Appellate Case No. 2018-001125

Theodore Wagner,

Appellant,

versus

Designa Print and Mike Davis including anyone who is Complicit or
Enabled protecting Mike Davis,

Respondent.

RECEIVED
MAY 03 2019
SC Court of Appeals

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

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

Respondent told him he believed in his innocence. (Tr. of R. 34:2-17). Notwithstanding the fact that Appellant's theory of proving his innocence is irrelevant and relies on hearsay and favorable testimony of Respondent and Andrea Crisel, Appellant fails to argue in his case in chief why her testimony furthers his case on either cause of action against the Respondent, or specifically any element thereof. Appellant's argument in vast majority focuses on his innocence of his criminal charges and not on prosecuting or putting forward an intelligible case against Respondent. His lack of ability to define the scope of his case required the trial judge to persistently attempt to maintain a focus on what it was the Appellant sought from the Respondent and from a jury. At one point, the trial judge attempts to stop the Appellant in his argument due to Appellant's continued argument about his innocence of his criminal conviction; nevertheless, Appellant goes into a denial on record that he had sexual relations with a 22 year old escort. (Tr. of R. 37:14 – 38:19). This escort is unknown, is not a party or witness to Appellant's case against the Respondent and is wholly irrelevant to his case. Despite the trial court's call for order, Appellant continues about "the things that keep him on the registry", how Andrea Crisel "is not a victim", how "[he] never had sex with her when she was underage", and how his attorneys conspired against him. (Tr. of R. 37:14 – 38:19). None of these statements have to do with his case against the Respondent. The entire record is full of the same type ramblings by the Appellant.

Appellant only articulates an argument of proving his innocence of the criminal charges he pled guilty to, and he is attempting to use the case against Respondent as a catalyst to do so. The Appellant commences and concludes the pre-trial hearing by arguing to the court of his innocence of his criminal charges. When the trial court first allows him to speak, Appellant opens by stating "[he has] been trying from the beginning" to clear his name that he was innocent of his criminal charges. (Tr. of R. 5:19). When the trial court allows Appellant to make final remarks in concluding

the day, Appellant only focuses on his professed innocence by stating, “she can’t say she wasn’t 20 years old. They were her friends. I didn’t know them. I never allowed them to ever do [sex parties] again in my house. And they did it all the time, but it was Andrea’s house too. They could come over. She could bring anybody over. I just didn’t want the freakiness at the house.” (Tr. of R. 68:20-25). Based on the totality of Appellants statements, he made it very clear his intentions and pursuit were focused on his criminal convictions and proving his innocence of those, rather than furthering any cause he may have against the Respondent. Appellant even acknowledges his persistence of proving his innocence of his criminal convictions by stating Judge Duffy, of the United States District Judge, asked him to stop attempting to place Andrea on the stand or put his innocence on the record, to which he allegedly replied, “I am not going to stop. I didn’t do it. I didn’t commit any crime.” (Tr. of R. pg. 8:16 – 23).

Based on the foregoing, the trial transcript, and essentially all of the filings by Appellant with the trial court, and those filed with this court, dismissal of Appellant’s action was proper, was in the sound discretion of the trial court, and necessary to manage the affairs and uphold the integrity of the judicial process. In *Georganne Apparel, Inc. v. Todd*, the court held that a dismissal under Rule 41;SCRCP, was proper: stating “The relief granted was not too harsh under the totality of the circumstances. Plaintiff has been given an abundant opportunity to litigate. There is a limit beyond which the court should not allow a litigant to consume the time of the court and to prolong unnecessarily time, effort, and costs to defending parties. The granting of the order was a discretionary matter”. *Georganne Apparel, Inc. v. Todd*, 399 S.E.2d 16, 19 (Ct. App. 1990).

The Court in *Georganne* dismissed an action against the Defendants on Plaintiff’s Motion, without prejudice, but with an order that only allowed a re-filing based on the same causes of actions. The Plaintiffs later refiled a Complaint, naming two new parties and new causes of action

against those parties. The trial court then dismissed with prejudice the action under Rule 41; SCRCPP, stating a “blatant violation” of the previous order dismissing the case without prejudice. *Id.* at 18. This Court upheld that trial court’s decision. *Id.* at 19. While the present case does not fit squarely to the facts of the cases decided by the courts of South Carolina, the cases, such as *Georganne* do speak to the broad discretion vested in the trial courts to manage their affairs and maintain the integrity of the judicial system. *Id.*

Aside from the argument stated before, the Appellant clearly did not appear at the trial of this matter prepared to pursue his case against the Respondent, but was readily prepared to attempt to present evidence and illicit testimony that he believes would prove the innocence of his criminal convictions. He presented discovery documents to the Respondent at the day of trial, and claimed that Respondent was already in possession of them, without providing a proof of service. (*See App. Designation of Matters on Appeal; Statement of Iss. No. 8*) In fact, Respondent asked for the records in discovery, subpoenaed the records from the medical provider, and then received a court order to protect those mental health records and subpoenaed them a second time, when the mental health provider informed the Respondent that they did not keep records on the Appellant. No healthcare provider was present to testify at trial on behalf of the Appellant, which would be necessary to his case had the trial court ever made a decision that emotional distress was in fact a cause of action sought by the Appellant¹. Much of the Appellant’s contentions brought before the trial court in the present matter against Respondent, mirror the same contentions he claimed in a

¹ This matter arises from a relationship between Respondent and the roommate of the Appellant. Appellant contends that he suffered emotional distress from the conduct that occurred between Respondent and his roommate during the time they were separating. Appellant does not contend Respondent’s conduct was directed towards him, requiring him to prove Respondent’s conduct toward the roommate actually resulted in bodily harm to the Appellant, thus requiring proof from a medical provider. Michael G. Sullivan et al. *Elements of Civil Causes of Action* 220 (5th Ed. 2015) citing *Upchurch v. New York Times Co. [d/b/a Spartanburg Herald]*, 431 S.E.2d 558 (1993). The Appellant did not make this argument to the trial court despite ample opportunity, nor did the trial court ever find sufficient information provided from the Appellant to make such a determination.

former lawsuit *Theodore Wagner v. State of South Carolina*, (Docket No. 2015-CP-10-1303), which was dismissed. The dismissal of that lawsuit led Appellant to use the case against the Respondent in an effort to achieve the same goals of eliciting testimony and presenting evidence relevant only to his criminal conviction. Most of the witnesses subpoenaed in the present matter, would have been subpoenaed had his former lawsuit not been dismissed. Appellants irrelevant subpoenaed witnesses required Respondent to file a motion to quash each one on the grounds of relevancy and on the grounds they each contained threatening language of retaliation if the witnesses did not appear and testify. The Appellant has disregarded the rules of court and abused the judicial system in an effort to relitigate his criminal convictions which he pled guilty to. Appellant acknowledges his repeated efforts over the years to use the courts as a means to relitigate his criminal convictions, by his own statements about his conversation with The Honorable Judge Duffy. (Tr. of R. pg. 8:16 – 23) Allowing him to continue to do so prejudices not only the respondent, but is an immense and immoral burden on the victim of his crimes. Dismissal of his action by the trial court was the proper use of its discretion to maintain the integrity of the judicial system and is the only remedy available in this matter. As the trial court properly recited, “we can’t go forward with a jury on assumptions”. (Tr. of R. 4:21-22)

2. Was it improper for Judge Deadra Jefferson to not recuse herself from presiding over motion hearings between Appellant and Respondent?

The Appellant contends that the trial judge during a motion hearing, The Honorable Deadra Jefferson, did not act with impartiality. Under Canon 3B(1), it states that: “(1) A judge shall hear and decide matters assigned to the judge except those in which disqualification is required. South Carolina Appellate Court Rules: Rule 501, Cannon 3(B)(1), SCACR. Canon 3 states:

“(1) A judge shall disqualify himself or herself in a proceeding in which the judge’s impartiality might reasonably be questioned, including but not limited to instances where:

- (a) the judge has a personal bias or prejudice concerning a party or a party’s lawyer, or personal knowledge of disputed evidentiary facts concerning the proceeding;
- (b) the judge served as a lawyer in the matter in controversy, or a lawyer with whom the judge previously practiced law served during such association as a lawyer concerning the matter, or the judge has been a material witness concerning it;
- (c) the judge knows that he or she, individually or as a fiduciary, or the judge’s spouse, parent or child wherever residing, or any other member of the judge’s family residing in the judge’s household, has an economic interest in the subject matter in controversy or in a party to the proceeding or has any other more than de minimis interest that could be substantially affected by the proceeding;
- (d) the judge or the judge’s spouse, or a person within the third degree of relationship to either of them, or the spouse of such a person:
 - (i) is a party to the proceeding, or an officer, director or trustee of a party;
 - (ii) is acting as a lawyer in the proceeding;
 - (iii) is known by the judge to have a more than de minimis interest that could be substantially affected by the proceeding
 - (iv) is the Judge’s knowledge likely to be a material witness in the proceeding.”

Id.

If a judge does not disqualify themselves from presiding over a matter, some form of challenge would have to be made by either party. The Appellant did not raise the issue of impartiality with the Court, and did not file a motion under Rule 59, SCRCF preserving this issue for appeal.

The United States District Court in *Duplan Corp v. Deering Milliken, Inc.*, citing *Chafin v. United States*, states, “The United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit has repeatedly stated that a reasonable challenge against a trial judge for bias and prejudice ‘must be made at the first opportunity after discovery of the facts...(allegedly requiring) disqualification’”. *Duplan Corp v. Deering Milliken, Inc.*, 400 F.Supp. 497, 509 (1975). In the Appellant’s Amended Designation and Brief, there is no supporting facts that show Judge Jefferson acted impartially in this matter, and no argument that a law was violated by Judge Jefferson not recusing herself. The Appellant only makes an assertion or claim that Judge Jefferson did act impartially or should have recused herself. The Appellant also fails to assert how he was prejudiced by Judge Jefferson presiding over the motion hearings. Much of the information put forward by Appellant is irrelevant and deals with his past criminal conviction, which he fails to provide it relevancy to his appeal or case against the Respondent. Appellant also contends Judge Jefferson denied him everything at the hearing he is referring to and gave the Respondent “whatever he wanted.” (App.’s Br. pg. 31) This is not true, and Appellant does not provide any proof to support it. The motion hearings referred to by the Appellant were for a protective order over his mental health records, a motion for a scheduling order, both filed by Respondent, and a motion for a speedy trial and a motion to have video evidence submitted as deposition testimony, both filed by the Appellant. Appellant’s motion before Judge Jefferson was to take the tape recordings he had of several individuals and have them submitted as depositions, which among other evidentiary violations, is clearly a violation of Respondent’s right to cross examination. Judge Jefferson had no option but to deny his motion. Appellant’s motion for a speedy trial was denied, because necessary discovery, including but not limited to the retrieval of mental health records, was still being conducted. Appellant’s contention that Respondent got “whatever he wanted” is purely inaccurate and out of touch with reality.

Judge Jefferson did not act with impartiality, and her presiding over the motion hearing did not prejudice the Appellant's case, and should have no affect on the rulings of the lower court. In addition, the Appellant did not raise this issue to the lower court or preserve it under Rule 59, SCRCF and thus it is not ripe for review by this Court.

3. Can counsel for Defendant demand a second set of records be supplied by Plaintiff that he previously received?

Appellant provides this statement of issue, without providing any supporting argument in his brief. (*See App.'s Br.*) Appellant does not provide proof of service, or any other supporting documentation showing that Respondent received the records he refers to. Appellant further did not raise this issue with the trial, or preserve it by filing a motion under Rule 59, SCRCF, thus it is not ripe for this appeal. Rule 201; SCACR.

Respondent does provide the following response: Appellant was served with a request for production on September 29th, 2015, requesting the records he refers to. Appellant did not provide the records. On July 16th, 2016, Respondent served a subpoena on Compass Carolina Healthcare Systems, requesting such records. Compass Carolina responded with a letter stating the Appellant was a patient, but did not release any records. On January 18, 2017, Respondent issued a subpoena with an attached order of protection, and a representative from Compass Carolina contacted Respondent's attorney and informed they do not keep records on the Appellant. Appellant was under a continuing duty to provide Respondent with discovery, and failed to do so. Instead of recognizing his continuing duty under Rule 34; SCRCF to provide discoverable materials to Respondent, Appellant blames the health provider for providing counsel for Respondent records and not providing them to him, when that too was not true. (Tr. of R. 65:16-24). *See CFRE, LLC v. Greenville County Assessor*, 716 S.E.2d 877, 885 (2011) ("An affirmative duty does exist to answer interrogatories and respond to request for production.").

This issue was not preserved for appeal, nevertheless, the Appellant's contentions are factually inaccurate, and his analysis is not supported by law. No part of this issue should affect the decision of the lower court's ruling.

CONCLUSION

All other issues on appeal by Appellant, were not raised with the lower court and not ripe for review or appealable under Rule 201; SCRAC. Therefore, Respondent does not provide a response to those remaining issues put forward by Appellant.

Based on the clear misuse of the judicial system, the failure of the Appellant to articulate or present to the trial court the relief he sought from Respondent, requesting relief not relievable or prayed for in his complaint, and misuse of the court and its rules to intimidate and attempt to put irrelevant testimony on the record, the trial court properly exercised its discretion and dismissed Appellant's action. Appellant does not contend abuse of the trial courts discretion, and unless abuse is shown, the decisions of the trial court should not be overturned on appeal. The burden on the Respondent in continuing to defend a case that has not been properly articulated or supported by the Appellant, is not only impossible for the Respondent to defend, but is also highly prejudicial and expensive. The Appellant has not put forward any argument of how the Respondent is not prejudiced by continuing to defend the action against him. Not only is the continued litigation of the Appellant's case prejudicial to the Respondent, but the continued conduct and filings of the Appellant clearly reflect and demonstrate his desire to use his case in an effort to relitigate criminal charges he willfully and voluntarily pled guilty to in 2002. In doing so, the Appellant has misused the trial court and the rules provided therein, to summons the former victims and investigating agencies involved in his criminal convictions to attempt to prove his innocence and pursue his conspiracy theory. This is the focus of the Appellant, not his case against the Respondent. There